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Whitehorse, Yukon Territory 
November 24, 1977 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order. 
We wi ll proceed at this time with Prayers. 

Prayers 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
South Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, I rise on a Point of personal 
Privilege this morning. I gather from the reports in the media 
that the Minister of Northern Affairs has spoken to the issue 
regarding correspondence that I had with him regarding the 
Legislative Assembly Ordinance and in that correspondence 
with him, I asked for a reply and that we would not proceed 
with further consideration of the Bill until we had given him 
the opportunity to reply. 

I think it is indeed unfortunate that this personal communi
cation, I have learned his reply through the news media and I, 
as yet, have not received a reply from the Minister himself. I 
think it is indeed an unfortunate discourtesy to myself and the 
Committee and it is really a disregard of this House. I think it 
is most unfortunate that he chose to take this route, but I do not 
intend to take it further along th is line of debating in the 
media, and I intend to communicate to the Minister regarding 
my feel ings in the way he has handled this matter. 

Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to the Order Paper. 

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any Documents for Tabling? 
Reports of Committees? 
Petitions? 
Introduction of Bills? 
Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of Pap

ers? 

Notices of Motion or Resolution? Are there any Statements 
by Ministers? 

This then brings us to the Question Period. 
The Honourable Minister of Education. 

QUESTION PERIOD 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling an answer 

to written question number 17, relating to Federal Govern
ment housing. 

Mr. Chairman: The Honourable Minister of Highways and 
~hl~ W~~. • 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling a 
legislative return , in answer to written question number 17, 
concerning the status of the Whitehorse fringe area franchise 
agreement with Yukon Electrical. 

I also have for tabling a legislative return in answer to Ms 
Millard 's question of November 21, concerning the Science 
Council of Canada Report, Looking Northward. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Ogilvie. 
Question re: Training and Hiring of Native People in YTG 
Ms Millard: Mr. Speaker, a written question for the Minis-

ter of Manpower. Will the Minister outline to us the programs 
and policies being implemented or considered, by his depart
ment, and other departments in the Territorial Government, 
to ensure that native people are trained and hired in the ad
ministrative area of Territorial Government. 
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Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Education. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I should just clarify one 

point in respect to the question being asked, that in respect to 
hiring in the Government, it is the responsibility of the Public 
Service Commissioner, not my department. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions? The Hon
ourable Member from Ogilvie. 

Question re: Alcoholism Treatment and Transporation 
Costs 

Ms Millard: Another written question to the Minister of 
Human Resources, concerning patients who require al
coholism treatment in Whitehorse, who live in outlying areas. 
1) What is the difference in practice concerning transporta
tion and treatment costs for the person of Indian and white 
status? 
2) What is the transportation and treatment cost to the indi
vidual who wishes to attend alcoholism tr eatment in 
Whitehorse, and can pay for the treatment themselves? What 
percentage of patients from inside and outside Whitehorse 
pay for treatment themselves? Of this percentage, how many 
are Indian status? 
3) Will the Minister consider a change in policy to equalize the 
situation so that patients of white status receive equitable 
service to those of Indian status, to encourage greater use of 
alcoholism facilities in Whitehorse? 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions? 
We will then proceed to motions. 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MOTIONS 
Madam Clerk: Item 1, standing in the name of the Hon

ourable Member, Mrs. Watson. 
Mr. Speaker: It would appear that the Honourable 

Member is not present today, and perhaps this motion could 
be stood over on the Order Paper for our next s itting. 

Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to Public Bills. 

PUBLIC BILLS 
Madam Clerk: Second reading, Bill6, Labour Standards 

Ordinance, standing in the name of the Honourable Mr. Lang. 
Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Whitehorse 

Porter Creek. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, in view of the fact that a 

special committee has been struck to look into this particular 
area, I would seek unanimous support of the members to 
withdraw this Bill from the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: Does the Honourable Member have unani
mous consent? 

Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Speaker: Are there any contrary? The Bill is so with

drawn. 
Madam Clerk: Second reading, Bill12, E~ectora~ District 

Boundaries Ordinance standing in the name of the Honourable 
Mr. Lang. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
Porter Creek? 
Bill 12: Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre that Bill 
Number 12 be now read a second time. 



Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek. seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre that Bill 
Number 12 be now read a second time. 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Speaker: Shall this Bill now be referred to Committee 
of the Whole? 

Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Speaker: So ordered. 
We will now proceed to Private Member's Public Bills. 

PRIVATE MEMBER'S PUBLIC BILLS 
Madam Clerk: Bill 101 , An Ordinance Respecting tile 

Legislative Assembly, standing in the name of the Honourable 
Member, Mr. Hibberd. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
South Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Next sitting, Mr. Speaker. 
Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Pelly River? 
Mr. McCall : I move Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair 

and the House resolve into Committee of the Whole. 
Mr. Fleming: I second the motion. 
Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 

Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Hootalinqua, that Mr. Speaker do now leave the 
Chair and that the House resolve into Committee of the Whole. 
Motion agreed to 

Speaker leaves the Chair 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman: I call Committee to order. We will be pro
ceeding with consideration of Bill Number 9, Workmen 's 
Compensation Ordinance. I will declare a brief recess. 
Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I call Committee to order. 
Now that our witnesses have been excused, members may 

wish to further debate the Workmen 's Compensation 
Ordinance. 

Now, I am lead to believe that there are amendments being 
proposed to the Ordinance, and so, at this time, I will not clear 
any of the clauses. 

Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: What would you propose that we do, in 

respect to the Bill? 
Mr. Chairman: Well, the indication was that, with the wit

nesses present, Members were not permitted full debate and 
they requested the opportunity to do so before the clauses 
were cleared so this is what we will now do. 

Mr. Lengerke. 
Mr. Lengerke: Go ahead, I will .. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mf. Chairman, with respect, there are 

two sections of this Ordinance, which do have a timeframe, 
~r~~ the point of view of the Workmen's Compensation Board, 
It IS Important to obtain assent. 

These are the sections which have to do with the maximum 
wage rate for the coming year, which employers must be 
advised of now, in order to make arrangements. As you have 
seen in your White Paper, there are several explanations for 

·this. 
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There is also a new class of coverage. for insured wurkers. 
in the Yukon. which is urgently required and if there is going to 
be any delay in the general policy or principle debated in the 
Bill. I would have some problem of how we are going to meet 
these time demands. 

Mr . Chairman: How urgent are your t ime demands. Mrs. 
Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I would th ink with in two weeks. Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Well. that should be okay. I am led to be
lieve that the proposed amendments will be available at the 
beginning of the week. so we will proceed when they are avail
able. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, you talk about proposed 

amendments. I do believe that the government should have 
the opportunity of going through the Bill now and hear what 
the general principles of the amendments are. I know that one 
is the board, concept of the board as opposed to being an 
advisory position. In respect to the appeal procedure, we 
would like to hear exactly what people have to say in this 
particular area. 

Mr. Chairman: That's why I asked for debate at the pres-
ent time, Mr. Lang. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Are you going through it clause by clause? 
Mr. Chairman: Yes. Mr. McCall ? 
Mr. McCall: There is one difficulty, Mr. Chairman, as I 

pointed out at the end of the day yesterday, that it would be 
only fair that we have the Regulations as was requested yes
terday. I was wondering if the Minister could advise us the 
point at where these Regulations are in order to assist us with 
this particular set of amendments. 

Mr. Chairman: I would point out these are only draft Reg-
ulations that you are referring to, Mr. McCall ? 

Mr. McCall: I am aware of that, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman , I have a second draft 

of these Regulations which are occupational health and safety 
regulations, not directly related to this discussion. They are 
available. I would caution all members to keep in mind that 
these are only drafts , they are now being discussed with 
labour and management and the people involved in them and 
there may be very many changes before they finally are ap
proved. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 
Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, this might be in the form of 

a question to the Minister, when I get done with my remarks. I 
have got some general remarks to make about this, and they 
are prompted again by representation from constituents, rep
resentation from certainly business people who are con
cerned, and I guess they are concerned as their co~erns now 
have been just highlighted, because of the work we are doing 
with respect to this Ordinance in the House. So now they are 
really starting to ask questions, and I am sure, Mr. Chairman, 
as we continue there will be more. 

A lot of businessmen don't even understand the benefits of 
Workmen's Compensation and some of the rules and regula
tions that pertain to it. 

I am finding that a lot of them are paying into it, just because 
they have to pay into it and they don't question it any further 
than that. 

Now, I know that we can't take that responsibility for them, 
but I am wondering if, maybe, the Minister could tell me if 
there is some sort of publicity, some brochures, some infor· 
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mation. or whatever. that goes out to every businessman. Is 
there some explanation to them. that they know what is ahead 
of them in doing this. what the benefits are? Because. really. I 
am quite concerned that. by the questions that have been 
asked just in the last couple of evenings that something is 
wrong and I think we should be doing a better job of telling 
them what the law is. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs . Whyard: Mr. Chairman. there definitely is a 

supply of information and brochures and educational mater
ial, and I am assured that this has been made available to all 
employers and they are constantly being circulated from the 
Board. or from the Administrator of the fund . with any 
changes or adjustments and the reasons for them. 

I would think if I were an employer. I would be pretty frant ic 
if there were no such umbrella covering me for damages to my 
employees, and I really cannot understand why an employer 
wouldn't appreciate the fact that he has an insured fund. 

I would think, Mr. Chairman, that the Administrator would 
welcome inquiries from any employers in the Yukon who do 
not feel they have sufficient information about Workmen's 
Compensation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 
Mr. McCall: Perhaps I could also reiterate what the 

Minister was saying. I believe it was approximately two and a 
half years ago that I requested, from the Minister's office. 
information which was forthcoming in very large quantities. 
which was given to one of the larger industries in the Yukon, 
and I think they used it extremely well. and that is the very 
informative little booklet. dealing with Workmen's Compen
sation , which is very informative for not only the employer. 
but the employee. It is well worthwhile. 

So, there is a lot of information available if you contact the 
office. 

Mr. Chairman: We will go through clause by clause. I will 
just call the clauses out. If there is any consideration. just let 
me know. 
On CLause 2 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: With respect, and perhaps I have mis

understood your intent, is there a reason for not clearing any 
of these sections as we go through? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, there is. As you know, Mrs. Whyard, 
there are amendments proposed. I do not know what those 
amendments are, so it is very difficult to clear the clauses 
until I know what the amendments are going to be. 

So , at the request of Committee members, I have withheld 
clearing them. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Until this reading, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Until the amendments are available. I 

think there are also some Government amendments that are 
going to be necessary , as well, considering the debate that has 
gone one so far . 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Yes, Mr. Chairman, but the usual pro
cedure, in Committee, is that we clear those sections for which 
no amendments are required, as we go through the Bill. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: Being one of the individuals that will be prop

osing amendments, Mr. Chairman , a substantial number of 
these sections in the amendments brought forth will be af
fected . Just how they are going to be affected I am not quite 
sure yet , they are under legal advice right now, and I re
quested, Mr. Chairman , that they take it under consideration, 
these amendments which will be coming forward next week. I 
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am not sure just how it is going to affect the proposed amend
ments before us right now, it could affect them all. I am not 
quite sure yet. 

What we will be doing is clearing through sections that are 
going to be amended and that, to me. doesn't make any sense. 

Mr. Chairman: We are going to get bogged down again in 
procedural things. The Chair has stated that we are not going 
to clear any clauses. I am not going to clear any clauses. now is 
there any debate regarding Claus~ 2 at the present time'! 

Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. in respect to what the Hon

ourable Member has said, I think that it would be advantage
ous if the Member has these amendments written up. which he 
indicates that he has . they are under legal advice. maybe he 
could make them available to all members so that they ha\·e 
the opportunity of looking them over over the week-end. It's a 
very serious Bill and you are going to have to have time to look 
at it and see how it does affect the Ordinance itself. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman. that's what I was saying. 

They are under legal advice, and as soon as they are n•<td.Y I 
will make them all available. That's why they will not bt• 
introduced until next week. Mr. Chairman. 

I have also advised the Minister concerned with this Bill of 
my intent . so I am not leaving anybody in the dark. But until 
the Legal Advisor has said it is okay. the Ianguagl' th<tt is. I 
have not got the material to provide to you. but if you w;~nt the 
rough drafts I can get you those. there is no problem . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 
Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman. I see no problem anyw< l~·. 

ei ther way, because you can't clear-. you might dear sunH' 
sections of the Bill , the Bill is still here. so why don't we carry 
on as the Chairman says and go through it and then when tlw 
amendments are here we can clear it all at once. can't WL'. 

Mr. Chairman: It's so often we get bogged down in the 
procedural business. so I have made the ruling. ! am not going 
to accept any more debate on how we are handling it. we will 
now proceed with further debate on Clause 2. Is thL•re any 
further debate on Clause 2'? 

Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have reservations on 

Clause 2. As I started to speak on it in the previous discussion 
we had when the witnesses were before us. my concern on 
Section 2, leaves me with great concern that we are giving 
very, very loose powers to the Commissioner or his adminis
trator, which to me is not really the intent of this particular 
piece of legislation. 

As I pointed out in my prev ious remarks. that when you read 
the existing legislation, an individual that may have a claim 
just runs around completely in an ever decreasing circle from 
the referee to the Commissioner, then back again. It has been 
now suggested that we even involve an administrator on be
half of the Commissioner which is only going to dirty up the 
picture even worse and which will, in all intents and purposes, 
probably defeat the intent of a person having a legitimate 
claim before the Compensation Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, from the remarks of the 

Honourable Member, is it his intent to just to have one step in 
respect to just going to the Board and that is the final decision, 
because it is my understanding that when a person goes for a 
claim, they can go to the Administrator. If they are not happy 
with what the Administrator says, they go to the referee, 
which is the Advisory Board. If they are not happy there, they 
can go to the Commissioner. 



So, is it the intent of the Honourable Member that it just have 
one procedure, you go to the referee and the ball game is over? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 
Mr. McCall : Mr. Chairman, I think, to start off with , I am 

not the person that presented this Bill and the question should 
be directed to the Minister concerned with it , not to me. 

But, to try and answer the Minister's question, my concern 
is that the present procedure we have under Workmen's Com
pensation is not the proper procedure. It never has been and it 
sho.uld not be, because we should have a Workmen's Compen
satiOn Board per se, not a r eferee, not an administrator, but a 
Workmen's Compensation with the Ordinance. This is my 
basic concern. 

Now, if we had the Workmen's Compensation Board, they 
could conduct their affairs accordingly. They will decide 
through the claims and adjustments that go on through 
Workmen's Compensation. It is not for me to dictate, and 
neither is it for a Commissioner to dictate, because, if we 
study the Yukon Housing Corporation , which the Minister is 
responsible for , they have their autonomy. They will conduct 
their affairs accordingly, without too much interference. 

We can always change the legislation, that is , I suppose , our 
job, but the point is that the Workmen's Compensation has the 
same autonomy, if it was in existence in the Yukon, which it is 
not, all we have is an advisory board. I can take or not accept 
the advice of any advisory board. That is my decision I would 
have to take. 

But, it has no useful purpose if you are trying to enforce or 
take into consideration any claims or adjustment under a 
piece of legislation like the Workmen's Compensation. 

Mr. Chairman : Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, the Honourable 

Member is saying, in effect, that he is going to bring in 
amendments which, in their place, will affect this section. So, 
is he asking us to stand it over until he brings in the amend
ment? Is that what he is asking? 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chair man, I have already taken and ac
cepted your position and decision on this particular matter. 

Now, I am prepared to go through debate on the sections 
before us . When we come to the proposed.amendments, next 
week, then we will discuss them at that time, but I have al
ready accepeted and acknowledged your decision on this mat
ter and we are discussing Section 2. 

I have just merely pointed out my concerns in Section 2, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairm an, I would like to further ask 

the Honourable Member, when he talks about the Board and 
the referee being an independent autonomous body, is he indi
cating then that we should be putting the Board on a full time 
basis? 

I recall very vividly, in earlier debate, that the Honourable 
Member was talking about the creeping bureaucracy and this 
kind of thing. It is my understand ing that the claims that are 
presently, the Board handles, are minimal when you are com
paring yourself to another provincial jurisdiction so I am 
wondering if he is looking at this as a part-time basis for the 
board or just what cr iteria is he using?. 

It's a very serious matter that we are looking at right here in 
the basic principle. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, with all due respect to the 

Minister, the position he is putting himself in as far as being 
naive, ·my concern is this: I am not going to dictate to the 

;.. Workmen" s Compensation Board if it should be established. 
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If the workload warrants the full-time basis. then that will be 
taken into consideration, but that is not for me to dictate. The 
Minister already knows the answer to his own q'Jestion. I 
cannot give him that answer. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman , with respect, it 's quite obvi

ous that the amendment the Honourable Member from Pelly 
River is suggesting would have a significant change in the 
structure of the Compensation Board, the Administrator, the 
whole thing, and with respect Mr. Chairman , it would be much 
better to have a copy of, even the suggested amendments a 
few days ahead of time so that at that time we could debate 
properly what he is suggesting and what is in the existing Bill . 

The Honourable Member from Pelly River is doing is con
siderable work on this, I understand, and we must give it our 
proper attention and make up our mind at that time whether 
we go this way or the way he is suggesting it. Mr . Chairman, I 
think we are rather wasting our time by chatter boxing at the 
present time. 

Mr. Chairman: Inevitably, we are going to have to be re
petitive, and I would suggest that we do limit debate on the 
areas where the amendments are going to be directly involved 
with. We still have to go through the Bill at this time if there 
might be other proposed amendments forthcoming. It is the 
subject of debate to reach those conclusions so we have to do it 
at this time. 

Is there any further debate on Clause 3? Mr. McCall ? 
Mr. McCall: Here again, Mr. Chairman, there will be a 

substantial effect on Clause 3 in the proposed amendments. 
On Clause 4 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, back to Clause 3. Is the 

Honourable Member inferring now that the Board is going to 
have the ability of raising the rates as well in respect to' the 
amendments that he is looking at? Without-totally autonom
ous. I think it is very serious. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I would say, without having the total author
ity to be in a position to say this, that that will be definitely 
taken into consideration. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, just one more question on 

4.(3). The Legal Advisor, the law clerk who was here, and itis 
more or less a question of interpreting for me what the draft
ing actually means. It says there that an employer can apply 
for compensation on behalf of one of his employees, and it lists 
them a , b, c , and d. 

It says " the compensation may, upon the application of the 
employer, be paid" . Does that mean that he applies for the 
Compensation Board to be covered? We are just saying that 
compensation can be paid in case of an accident or a disability 
or an illness. 

Mr. Cosman: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Honourable 
Member is suggesting that the section is wide enough, 'that 
there is a possibility that where an accident has happened, and 
then a claim for compensation is made, that this section would 
operate in that case? Is this the essence of the question? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, it says that they can receive 
compensation, but it doesn't say that the employer has to, it 
says the employer must apply, but , does it say in other parts of 
the legislation where that employer then would have to put 
that person on his assessment roll and also pay a premium on 
his behalf. 

The way it reads to me, he just is eligible for compensation. 

) 
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Mr. Cosman: Yes. that is the essence of Section 5, as well , 
is eligibility for compensation and this. subsection 3, is just a 
further eligibility. 

So, wherever. throughout the Workmen 's Compensation 
Ordinance, there may be, I would think. is provision affecting 
coverage for compensation generally, as opposed to a pay
ment. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that is precisely the ques
tion. In the other sections where there is a compulsion for the 
employer to, does that compulsion then include the person 
that has been applied for in here? I am not sure, and so maybe 
we could watch for it as we go through . because we wouldn't 
want them to be eligible for compensation. but not eligible for 
premiums payments. 

Mr. Cosman: Yes, Mr.Chairman. if I may, as well , I would 
like to have some time to take this into consideration and 
perhaps speak with the member on the matter. 
On Clause 5 

On Clause 6 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: We shouldn't really clear that. because that 

would certainly be affected by the amendment. 
Mr. Chairman: Pardon. 
Mrs. Watson: We just can't clear that section, that's going 

to be affected by the amendment. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, I am not clearing any 

clauses. 
Mrs. Watson: Okay, fine. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think this again brings out 
what I meant in that other question of the legal advisor that I 
questioned in 4.(2) . This one where it is the member's family, 
it says the application shall be made by the employer and shall 
contain the names and so on, but we don't do that for that other 
section. 

Mr. Cosman: I am sure that there is a general application 
section that applies to Section 5 generally, and therefore 5. (3) 
that is suggested, that we were discussing earlier would fall 
into that general clause. 
On Clause 7 

On Clause 8 

Mr. Chairman: This Section is to be reviewed. 
On Clause 9 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, if I may go back to Clause 5, I 

am interested, and I don't know if I asked the question or not, 
but to me it could be possible, I can see it possibly in this 
Section to create unfair competition by outside firms corning 
into the Territory and competing for jobs in the Territory, 
particularly in seasonal work and corning up on the pipeline. I 
could think of flight contracts, helicopter contracts, airplane 
contracts on a seasonal basis of one month or two months, and 
what assurance do we have that those companies or people are 
going to be rated the same rates as the same companies work
ing in the Yukon, already there? I don't think there is any 
assurance in here whatsoever, and this could be substantial 
money we are talking about here, right now, if they would be 
following on a different rating say in Alberta or in BC. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, there is no provision 

for giving them any other rates than the ones we have here. 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, with all due respect, but 5 

doesn't say that. It says: "The Commissioner may enter into 
, .an agreement with the Worker's Compensation Board of any 
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province providing for the payment of compensation" , then at 
the end it says : " as the case may be , to avoid a duplication of 
assessments ." In other words, the company, or the person in 
question, the reason I am questioning it, he is already being 
assessed in the province, maybe Alberta or anyplace, so in 
other words, we no longer assess them in the Yukon. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. I wish the Honourable 
Member had asked this question yesterday, when we had our 
witnesses with us, but it is my understanding that there is no 
way that anybody could come in here on a contract and emp
loy people in the Yukon without paying the assessment rates 
imposed upon him in the Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard. 
Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, it says that right after what 

the Member quoted, it says "in conformity with he provisions 
of this Ordinance" . If people would read what is in front of 
them. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that is not correct, it pro
vides for an agreement to provide for compensation in con
formity with the provisions of this Ordinance for injuries to 
workers. I think there probably is an answer to it in the 
amendment, but I don 't know where it is. 

But I think he has brought up a good question. 
Mr. Cosman: Yes, again, I would like to take that matter 

under consideration, if I could , because, first of all , I have 
been momentarily researching Mrs. Watson's earlier ques
tion to me, and not following the complete gist of the question 
here, and, again, I hesitate to give off-the-cuff opinion. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: Yes, further to that same thing, I have a 

question that possibly the Legal Advisor could answer. 
In the case, and this would be partially this case. and I will 

quote an area where it has been done, in such things as our 
Labour Standards, where the Commissioner can make an 
order, so that the people that are working do not get the 
amount of holidays that they are actually required in that 
ordinance. 

I would ask, in this same case that Mr. Berger brought up, 
could the Commissioner make an order, subject to this Ordi
nance, that would classify companies at a different rate, that 
carne to work in this country? 

Hon. Mrs. Wbyard: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I do not know what your rules are 

today in this Committee, but we still have two witnesses sit
ting here in the House, if we could prevail upon them to assist 
us. I thought we were handling all this kind of question yester
day, when they were with us. 

Would the Committee agree to let us recall Mr. Laing and 
Mr. Booth. 

Mr. Chairman: No, I would really wonder at the value of 
doing it. We are trying to get this through this Legislation. I 
think that we had ample opportunity to question the witnesses 
for two days and I really think we should try and proceed with 
debate, if we can, to get through this Ordinance. 

Mr. Fleming: Can I have the answers, Mr. Chairman . 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: In all respect, Mr. Chairman, however, the 

question did not arise, and it has arisen now and I would 
appreciate an answer, because, in my feeling, it may take 
three months to put this Ordinance through, but if it takes 
three months and is done properly and we are assured that 
nothing like this can happen, which has happened before, and · 
as I have stated, has happened and I can prove it, I would like ' 
an answer to that question. · 



Mr. Chairman: Okay, but you realize that when your wit
nesses come back in here, general debate is then terminated 
md that again, we will have to go over that. · 

You are just creat·ing another round. 
Well , we will recess while we recall our w1tnesses. 

Recess 

Mr. Chairman: T call Committee to order. 
For the record, Mr. Laing and Mr. Booth have rejoined us as 

witnesses, and !"would request of Committee that if they have 
my more questions to ask of the witnesses, that they do at the 
present time and there will be no general debate permitted. I 
would also point out that if general debate is not permitted at 
this time, any amendments that might we flowing from that 
general debate would again delay consideration of the Bill a 
further week, because that will be again next week before we 
have the opportunity to have general debate on the BilL 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: Yes Mr . Chairman, I have a question for the 

witness . I will try to reiterate if I can what the Minister for 
Education asked of me, and that is the regulating or establish
ing , I believe, the rates or compensation , whatever it was. 
Maybe the Minister could reiterate or re-emphasize his ques
t ion. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, really what I wanted to get 
down to is what is the consequences of the board as a totally 
autonomous body. Number one, it is my understanding that 
the board would have the ability to raise the rates. Right now 
they have to go in by Regulation through the Commissioner 
and the Executive Committee. Is that not correct? 

Mr. Booth: That is correct. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Okay. Number two, in respect to the 

board, then the board would have the ability of increasing 
their man years without, in respect to the administration of 
the Workmen's Compensation, without being subjected to the 
scrutiny of the Executive Committee and the financial factors 
that are related thereof. 

Mr. Booth: It would depend on how the Members draw the 
Ordinance. This is the way, as you mentioned it, in the other 
lboards . 

Mr. Laing: Perhaps I could elaborate on that a little bit , 
Mr. Chairman. In the other provincial boards, let's not talk 
about the Northwest Territories at the moment, but in the 
provincial boards, the money comes from the employers and 
the boards have their own budgets and they, in most cases, 
except the very small ones, they have their own staff and they 
have their own pension fund, and they have their own fringe 
benefits, and they have their own staffing policies and person
nel and payroll and everything else. 

In the Northwest Territories, they use the services of the 
government, the payroll and personnel services of the gov
ernment, and they make the employees there public servants 
of the Northwest Territories, and they pay them on the same 
scales as are paid to all other public servants, and this was 
mainly in order to prevent them losing their fringe benefits 
and their pension rights and the other rights that stem from 
employment as a public servant of the Northwest Territories. 

It is entirely up to the Assembly to decide how it should be 
handled in the Yukon, whether the staff of the Board would be 
big enough to warrant having its own personnel and payroll 
services, or whether they would use the services of the Gov
ernment, of the Public Service to provide for the employment 
of the staff. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Well , Mr. Chairman, it is my understand-
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ing that if we were to go and follow the concept of the pro
vinces , on the Workmen's Compensation Board, that they 
make the decision of how many staff that they need in respect 
to administering the Workmen's Compensation fund. Is that 
not correct ? 

Mr. Laing: That is correct, in the provinces, yes. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Now, Mr. Chairman, a supplementary 

question : in respect to the Boards , at the present time the 
Advisory Board, I understand, meets on a monthly basis. Is 
that not correct? 

Mr. Booth: That is correct. 
Hon. Mr. Lang : And , if we were to make it a permanent 

Board, in taking the authority away from the Adminstrator. 
they would have to be meeting on a much more continuous 
basis, than what they are presently now. If they are doing that. 
then they would either have to be on a part-time or a full-time 
salary. Is that a fair assumption to make? 

Mr. Laing: The Board in the Northwest Territories only 
meets on a monthly basis, also. The only difference there is the 
Chairman is on a full-time basis , so the administration work 
can go on on and on-going basis, but the Board itself only 
meets on a monthly basis . They have got about twice the 
number of claims that there are in the Yukon. So, it could be 
handled quite easily by monthly Board meetings. 

The Chairman is a full-time public servant of the Northwest 
Territories, but he wears a number of other hats, is responsi
ble for a number of other boards and departments within the 
government. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, a couple of questions for the 

witnesses: in the provinces, the Legislature does not vote any 
of the salaries of the workers who work for the Compensation 
Board. Is that correct? 

Mr. Booth: That is correct, just for the Board they do. The 
Minister of Labour sets the salaries for the Board members. 

Mrs. Watson: The board members. 
Further to that, now, in the Northwest Territories , in their 

structure, the Assembly of the Northwest Territories would 
vote the salaries of the workers who work in the administra
tion of the Workmen's Compensation Board. Is that correct, 
and then it would be recovered as a source of revenue? But, 
they initially vote the salary for that many man years. Is that 
correct? 

Mr. Laing: That has been correct, up to now, that the 
salaries are part of the vote in the Northwest Territories. It is 
correct that it is reimbursed out of the Fund , but that is under
going a process of change at the present time, to give more 
freedom to the Board to decide its own priorities and fts own 
requirements for staffing. 

They are still using the assistance of the personnel depart
ment, in establishing jobs and job descriptions and that sort of 
thing. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, just one more further ques

tion : so this is going to be changed in the changes that you 
foresee. Will the control of the man years and the administra
tion of the compensation have anything to do with the Legisla
tive Assembly at all in the Northwest Territories for the fu
ture? 

Mr. Laing : Directly on a day to day basis, probably not, 
but on an overall basis, the Ordinance is still an Ordinance of 
the Assembly, and it can still be-, there is still a report to be 
made to the Legislative Assembly each year, and still an 
opportunity to discuss the budgets of the board and to say 
whether they put the rates up too much or not enough. Thr 
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whole matter still comes back through the board to the Legis
lative Assembly . The Regulations that are made under the 
Ordinance still have to be signed by the Commissioner. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. in respect. going back to 

the provinces. If it is an autonomous board. I understand that 
they set the rates. That is my first question. is that not cor
rect? 

Mr. Laing: That is correct. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Okay. My second question. Mr. Chairman. 

if the legislation were to go forth and to make the board an 
autonomous body really other than for changing the legisla
tion. the only authority that the government would have if they 
do not agree with what took place in respect to the assessment 
and the raising of the rates would be to fire the members? I 
understand that is practiced in one particular jurisdiction. 

Mr. Laing: There would be an intermediate stage. The 
Commissioner could withhold assent on the Regulation or 
withhold his signature on the Regulation changing the rates. 

· Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. then does the government. 

or in the provinces, do they have the ability to send it back to 
the Workmen's Compensation Board and say no they don't 
agree with the increase and would they review it and come up 
with say a third less of an increase. 

Mr. Laing: No, the procedure is not a direct procedure in 
the provinces. They don't submit the rates to the government 
and ask for their permission to levy these rates. They have the 
right within the Act to levy the rates themselves and they have 
to stand by the results of that. If they increase them too much 
all at one time and cause political wrath somewhere down the 
line, then they have to stand the ultimate consequence. which 
is being fired. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall ? 
Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would like to project 

one question to Mr. Laing. Is it fair to assume. Mr. Laing . that 
this is about the last area in Canada where we do not have a 
Workmen's Compensation Board? 

Mr. Laing: I think it is the last. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: To my question, I think that possibly Mr. 
Legal Advisor has had a chance to look at that , I wonder if I 
could have an answer now? 

Mr. Cosman: Yes, it is my understanding that Section 4, of 
the Workmen's Compensation Ordinance, as it presently ex
ists, would provide for differential rates and subclassifica
tions within the same industry or same classification of emp
loyment, whereby the Commissioner can establish different 
rates. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, still pursuing the difference 

between the Yukon and the provinces, in the provinces, the 
Legislatures have still retained the right , through their legis
lation, their act, to increase or decrease the benefits. That is 
the maximum salary, the benefits under pensions, the 75 per 
cent that we have. Have they retained this right? 

Mr. Laing: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the general right to 
change the benefits and the scale of benefits rests with the 
Legislature, but they have given away part of that rate to the 
extent that they have allowed automatic escalation of some of 
the benefits in proportion to the Consumer Price Index. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think that is quite signific
.ant. I am glad that the witness brought that to our attention. 
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That is one right that we have given up in our legisl<ltiun. by 
the cost of living clause that we have in there. and we did get a 
message yesterday that that , in itself. is increasing th e be
nefits and in the future, could cause problems within our fund 
and would require a difference in rates. So that is a resp0!1'ii
bility that we would retain. regardless of how we struct.il e :t. 
our Compensation Board . 

These are the types of things that we could be addressing 
ourselves to at this time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 
Mr. McCall: Yes. Mr. Chairman. I ha1·e another question . 
If the Workmen's Compensation Board was set into place. at 

this point in time. would it be fair to assume. if. in the event of 
the up and coming major project that is on the horizon . if the 
Board was set into place at this point in time. prior to any of 
this particular project getting off the ground. would it bL• fair 
to assume that we would be in a fair better position to cont rol 
any major fluctuation under Workmen s Compensation? 

Mr. Laing: I don" t really think there is acutary ali1 t' to 
answer that question. because I do not han~ a crystal ball It 
W(\llld depend very much on the quality of thL' l'haral'tL'I' of tlw 
people who form the board . 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard '? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. cuuld 1\'l' no11 ll<t l ,. till' 

Honourable Member from Klondike repeat his quL·st ion 1111 1d1 
is why we brought the witnesses back. 

Mrs. Watson: I want to pursue some of the que:;tion,.. I' • la
tive to the general nature of tlw bLlard. of tht• 11 ttrll':'SL'" 11 ' ' ,. 
may . in respect? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson;) 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. again. the Legislatur,•::; lla1 L' 

retained the power to increase or decrease benefits. and I 
think we were told yesterday that the Province of AJb,•rta. 
when they changed the legislation which increases benrl its 
under the Compensation Board , they underwrite tile vn::;t of 
that increased benefit. Is that correct? 

Mr. Booth: Yes. in the case of widows and permarwnt. 
total. and partial disability pensions. not the maximum in
creases every year. 

Mrs. Watson: Oh. they don't. Mr. Chairman. that's what I 
wanted, whether they make the grant that accommodates the 
maximum increase. 

Mr. Laing: No. it is not in regard to the maximum. it is in 
the regard to the cost of living increases on benefits in respect 
of past years' accidents only that the tab is picked up by the 
Consolidated Revenue Fund. The maximum affects the be
nefits for the current year. but tbe cost of living index escala
tion affects all benefits in respect of past actions, and of course 
it is very difficult for the employers who paid the premiums 
ten years ago, to have to pick up the cost of living increases 
that have arisen in 1977 from changes in the cost of living this 
year. It would be very difficult for insurance companies to pay 
these increases out of rates that had been set and premiums 
that had been paid in the past. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, our cost of living clause not 
only picks up the increases in the past, because it applies to 
pensions and benefits, but it also picks up the benefits for the 
future. That's where we have a double ridge, rather than the 
provinces. 

Mr. Laing: Yes, it increases the maximum in respect of 
fringe benefits. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard? 
Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, pursuing the questions that 

Mr. Fleming has been asking and the reply from the Legal 
Advisor concerning Section 4, and Section 4 simply states that 



the Commissioner can pretty well only increase the rates if 
any particular industry is shown to be so circumstanced or 
conducted that the hazard is greater than the average of the 
class, so I would presume if the hazard is greater, the rates 
would be greater. I was wondering if the witnesses could say 
what has happened in practice with the Commissioner. Has he 
changed the rates at all, and if that hasn't happened in the 
past, what assurance do we have that it won't happen in the 
future in this legislation that we have? 

Mr. Laing: There has been no such use of that power in the 
past in the Yukon to charge extra rates for special hazards. 

Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, no such use to charge less of a 
rate? 

Mr. Laing: No, but the merit rebate system is an attempt 
to introduce such a system. Of course it is much better to have 
merit rebates, than to have special extra premiums for 
hazards. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard. 
Ms Millard: Then there is nothing in the legislation, pres

ent or proposed, which would allow the Commissioner to make 
special allowances for any industry, to give them less of a 
rate? 

Mr. Laing: There is complete power within the Ordinance, 
as it stands now, to set the rates. It is in the Commissioner's 
hands, rather than in the Board's hands, which it would be in a 
province, but , I will let Mr. Booth read the Section. 

Mr. Booth: "The Commissioner shall, from time to time, 
assess and levy upon the employers in each of the classes and 
subclasses, such percentage of the payroll or such other rate, 
or such specific sum allowing for any surplus or debts in the 
class". So, if there was a high hazard, he could increase the 
rate at any time throughout the year. 

If suddenly we had had a fantastic disaster, then we could 
consider increasing the rate at that time, to gather sufficient 
assessments in that year. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard. 
Ms Millard: But, Mr. Chairman, my questioning is at the 

opposite end of the scale, not that the hazard is greater. I can 
see that and it should be allowed, but is there anywhere that 
allows him to charge less than what has been established as 
the class or subclass that is in question? 

Mr. Booth: Yes, as we say, we review the rates every year, 
and if we built up the subclass balance to-. The policy is, of 
the Board's, is that you look at the size of the class and you 
should say anywhere from three month's revenue to twelve 
month's revenue, should be a surplus balance. 

We had reached that point and the experience showed that it 
was going to stay at that point, or was going to increase higher 
than the surplus, then we would lower the rate. 

Mr. Laing: Yes, but apart from the merit rebate system, it 
would not be done on a blue-eyed boy basis. This employer can 
get half of the rate, but everybody else has to pay the full rate. 
It is not done and it has never, to my knowledge, been done on a 
discriminatory basis. That is the purpose, again, of the merit 
rebate system, is to avoid it being done on a discriminatory 
basis. It is done on a formula basis, based on actual claims 
experience. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard. 
Ms Millard: Just one last question on that, then, being 

suspicious by nature, I am just wondering if a class could be 
created that could be called, for instance, pipeline workers, 
and be given a special rate because they are pipeline workers. 
Is that possible? 

Mr. Booth: Yes, the Commissioner can set any class or 
, subclass, whichever way he wishes. 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 
Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have a number of ques

tions dealing with, perhaps the makeup of the Workmen's 
Compensation Board. 

I note in the act, the Workmen's Compensation Act for the 
Province of Alberta, which I believe our Ordinance originally 
originated from, they have a board comprised of not less than 
three individuals. 

I was wondering, Mr. Cha irman, and I am asking, perhaps , 
of Mr. Laing, the magical figure, where it would cover the 
industry at large, perhaps, pr ivate industry or whatever, the 
employee at large, the public at large and the government. 

What in your own estimation, would be the magical figure of 
a board such as that? Would it be three, or would it be five, or 
eight, or twelve? 

Mr. Laing: I still don 't have a wizard's hat or a crystal ball 
to answer that kind of question. We don 't deal in magic num
bers. In the provinces, generally , the number is three, and it 
works very well, (a) because they are full time people, and (bl 
because there is a representative from labour, and a rep
resentative from management , and a neutral chairman usu
ally. 

In the Northwest Territories, the Council there in it's wis
dom increased the minimum from three to five, because they 
were, apart from the chairman, part-time members, and so in 
order to be sure that there would always be a quorum and that 
it wouldn't be, the board would be caused to be unable to deal 
with the case because one of the part-time members might 
have to clisqualify himself in dealing with a claimant, because 
he was either an employee of his own , or a member of the same 
union, and that has happened with part-time boards. They 
have to disqualify themselves from looking at a particular 
case because of special interest. 

If you got the position there with only three members, you 
could be left with only two people to adjudicate on that claim, 
and so Council there thought that a mimimum of five was 
necessary, because they were part-time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: I appreciate the comments from Mr . Laing, it 

helps to clarify one point. I would say that perhaps five is the 
magical figure to cover up all the concerns that people may 
have. Taking into consideration, Mr. Chairman, the part-time 
concept which we will probably finish up with in the Yukon, I 
notice in the provinces, without looking at the Northwest Ter
ritories legislation, that they are appointed by the 
Lieutenant-Governor, the members to this particular board. 

I would like to ask, perhaps, Mr. Laing, if the concept was 
adopted here that the appointed people to this board would be 
upon the advice and consent of this Assembly is a far better 
system than being directly appointed by the Lieutenant
Governor for various reasons? 

Mr. Laing: Well, it is my recollection that , in Alberta, it is 
the Lieutenant-Governor in Council that appoints them and 
that, in effect, is the Cabinet. 

But you raised a good point, because this was discussed a 
year ago in the Northwest Territories, too. It was felt there 
that the appointment of members to these boards should stay 
under the control of Council, and so they retained the power to 
advise the Commissioner on the appointment of members to 
the board. 

The two remaining members have just been appointed, be
cause they couldn't be appointed until it was taken back to 
Council for their approval. 

0 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. .0 
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Mr. McCall: One final point on that. Mr. Chai rman. that bert a would adjudicate the cl aim under the terms of their Act. 
would. in essence. protect that autonomy that Board would It is basically that you save th e employer from being dupli-
have by that ty pe of procedure. cated. paying double assessments. 

Mr. Laing: Yes. it would . 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I am getting back to the 
increasing the benefits. again. 

Just one more question on tha t and we were talking about 
Alberta , if they s tepped in , incr eased the benefits , incr eased 
pensions, they would pick up the tab. 

In the Yukon Territory, now. the situation we have is very 
similar to what Alberta would do. We have incr eased the 
benefits in pensions beyond the cost of living increase. Now, if 
we were following the Alberta model. would not the Yukon 
Government pick up the extra cost , the $12,000 that the Minis
ter was telling us , if we were following the Alberta pa ttern? 

Mr. Laing : Yes, that is the way it would work. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman . I would like to ask Mr . 

Laing a question here , and he has had a chance to. I under
stand, do a very thorough analysis and exactly what has gone 
on in the Workmen 's Compensation Board in the last three 
years , and , in the last year , with the Board being struck the 
way it presently exis ts. Is it working well ? 

Mr. Booth : In the Yukon? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes. 
Mr. Booth: Yes, to my knowledge, it is working quite well . 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Now, Mr. Chairman , I would just like to 

make a comment. I get the impression that everybody feels 
that the Commissioner is working on Workmen's Compensa
tion on a daily basis. I would just like to point out that-

Mr. Chairman: What is the question Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: I'll raise it later, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger ? 
Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I see I am getting ap

plause here and everything . I have a question for the witnes
ses, Mr. Chairman. Section 5, my interpretation is this Section 
provides the assurance to the workman that comes in from out 
of the Yukon Territory that he is provided with compensation 
in case of an accident, but it is my interpretation that this 
coverage is achieved by the assessment applied to in the pro
vince where the company or the person originated from. Is 
that true? 

Mr. Booth: No, this is not true. The purpose of this , the 
agreement, is so that it avoids a duplication of assessments. If 
an employee who is a resident of Alberta comes to work in the 
Yukon for six months, and six months, the earnings or the 
wages that he earned while in the Yukon are reported to the 
Yukon Workmen's Compensation Fund . The remainder of the 
wages earned in Alberta is reported to Alberta. 

If we did not have these reciprocal agreements, then the 
employer would be double assessed. We would assess him as 
an out of the Territory on his assessment, and Alberta would 
then be allowed to assess him all his wages for the year. This 
allows him to save duplication of assessments. 

It also protects, if he is a resident of Alberta and he is injured 
in the Yukon, he also has the right to claim Workmen's Com
pensation in his own jurisdiction, because naturally he is 
going, he is injured, he is going back to his home, and he would 
get a much speedier adjudication on his claim if he is right 
there and vice versa, if a Yukoner is injured in Alberta , he has 
a right to claim through us or through Alberta. We will reim
burse the costs of that claim to Alberta, under the terms of our 
Ordinance, and if it was a Yukoner, injured in Alberta, AI-

Mr. Laing: I would just like to amplify one other point. 
This is not only in connection with somebody coming in for s ix 
months and then going out again . It applies to people that 
travel into the Territory, a trucker . or , if the flying crew were 
covered . then it would apply to them . too. 

Without the reciproca l agreement. Alberta would say. or the 
other province wou ld say, okay. you have got to be covered on 
your tota l salaries because you are working out of Alberta. 
They would pay assessments on total salaries and then Yukon 
would say the same. as Mr. Booth has sa id . With the reciprocal 
agreement. you can aportion a salary between that part of 
sa lary which is relevant to work in Alberta and that part of 
salary which is relevant to work in the Yukon. 

They pay the appropriate assessment ra te on the Alberta 
sa lary to Alberta 's Board . and on the Yukon sala ry to the 
Yukon board, at Yukon's assessment ra te. yes . 

Mrs. Watson : And Alberta on Alberta 's assess ment raiL' '.' 
Mr. Laing: Yes. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 
Mr. Lengerke: Just to follow up to that. how do tlwy 11 ork it 

with a commercia l t raveller . then, tha t is based in Yukon. 
travelling back and forth ? How is that assessment- '! 

Mr. Booth:: It would be assessed on the time spent 111 the 
Yukon and the wages. we would pro rate the wagt>s bast·d on 
that time, spent in the .... 

Mr. Lengerke: I would just be an estima ted time then'.' 
Mr. Booth: Yes, if he hasn' t got it. 
In the case of truckers, a ll Boards have agr eed to this policy. 

that we assess on the basis of mileage. because of fuel tax 
purposes, they have to record the mileage done in each pro
vince or Territory , so therefore, we use the mileage rate. the 
percentage of mileage times the payroll in each place. 

Mr. Lengerke : I see, t hank you. 
Mr. Chairman: Perhaps Mr. Laing or Mr. Booth could tell 

me, are all federa l employees who are pemanently r esident 
here in the Yukon, ar e they all covered by Alberta Compensa
tion ? 

Mr. Booth: They are covered under the F ederal , their own 
Federal Department of Labour Compensation . The Alberta 
Board administer the cla ims on behalf of the Federa l Gov
ernment, for the Yukon and the Northwest Territories. 

Mr. Chairman: Are there any further questions for the 
witnesses? 

Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Just the one question, that I asked the Jaw 
clerk for clarification , and possibly the witnesses are more 
familiar with the actual legislation, the philosophy of the legis
lation, for one , where we say an employer, compensation upon 
application of an employer where the people who are exempt. 
Then again, compensation for the members of a family. These 
people would then be cover ed to pay assessment under 57. ( 1). 

Mr. Booth: Yes, we would , for example, they would be 
classified in a classification depending on what type of work 
they were doing , and they would pay the same rate that is 
proclaimed. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman , then 57.(1 ) is broad enough 
then to interpret these people as employers, and so they have 
to pay the assessment on behalf of their employees? 

Mr. Booth: If they make application. 
Mrs. Watson: If they make application, right. 



Mr. Booth: We cover it in there by stating ''such terms and 
conditions as the Commissioner directs", and this will be, this 
is directed again by Commissioner's Order when we set the 
rates on classifications. 

On the application form it states when they make the appli
cation, so that the times are prescribed on the application 
form and also the name. Such terms and conditions , a period 
of time as the Commissioner appears satisfactory. So what the 
form states, which says, "can be proclaimed by a form, under 
the Ordinance". It states on it that I hereby make application 
from such a date in such an amount. That is the period ol time , 
and he is covered from then on until February 28th. The reason 
for that is so that at the end of the year we have to send out 
forms in December for him to make reapplication so that if 
there is a delay in him receiving this form and getting it back 
in, he has got two months coverage to reapply. So it protects 
him with continual coverage. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. 
Mr. Chairman: Thank you again, gentlemen. This after

noon Committee will continue with consideration of Bills 
Number 2, 11, and 12. 

Committee will recess until 1:30. 
Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I now call Committee to order. 
In view of the wishes of many Members of Committee wish

ing to attend the funeral of Mr. Bert Boyd, I would ask Com
mittee for permission to recess until3:30. 

Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Chairman: At which time the business before Com

mittee is fairly limited for one reason or another, and I would 
suggest that at that time we continue with debate on the 
pipeline agreement and the Resolution dealing with the 
pipeline committee. 

Committee will recess untill :30. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, with your perm1ss1on, I 

wonder if we could just briefly go into amend the Local Im
provement District Ordinance. I know it has gone back to the 
draftsman, and in my working paper, I have discovered two 
very significant things that I should bring up, if we could 
dwell, when we go into Committee, very briefly on these 
things, we could possibly prevent them having to bring it back 
in and then back out again. 

Mr. Chairman: Fine, will do. Recess. 
Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I call Committee to order. 
We will first deal, at the request of Mrs. Watson, with the 

amendments to the Local Improvement District Ordinance. 
Mr. McKinnon, was not present at thattime. Mr. McKinnon, 

Mrs. Watson had some further suggestions to the amend
ments to the L.I.D. Ordinance, which she would like to put 
forward at this time, because they may require motions to 
amend. 

Bon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, would Mr. Cosman 
be available then? He was instrumental in the amendments to 
this Bill, to date. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, it is just one point. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, and I would refer, Mr. 

Chairman, to page 3, Section 3, Clause 11.(2)(1) (2), it states: 
"Where no manager is appointed in accordance with subsec
tion 10.(5), the Board of Trustees shall supervise and direct 
the affairs of the district and officers and employees thereof." 

Now, there seems to be a conflict or a contradiction to what 
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is being said in a different section in the amendment t~at we 
put through in the First Session of 1975. It is on page335, m th1s. 
really it is 6. (4) (c) 

It is the powers that we give to the Chairman. The Chairman 
shall preside over all meetings and so on, and ( c l he shall 
direct all administrative officers and employees of the district 
in the conduct of their work, and direct the management of the 
business and affairs of the district. 

So, in that amendment, we have delegated that authority to 
the Chairman if you don't have a manager. In the amendment 
that is before us now, we are suggesting the Board of Trustees. 
We say the Chairman shall on the advice of the Board of 
Trustees, but in the new amendment of a different section it 
almost contradicts what was said in that other section, and 
Mr. Chairman, I certainly prefer the latest amendment my
self, personally. The Board of Trustees shall supervise and 
direct the affairs of the district, and the officers and the emp
loyees thereof. That means they can share the workload; 
whereas in the other you are specifically giving that responsi
bility specifically to the Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 
Bon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I would be pleased to 

look at that and whether there is in fact a conflict between the 
two sections. 

Mr. Chairman: Anything else, Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that was the only point and I 

thought it was worthwhile bringing it up before the fact. 
Mr. Chairman: On to consideration of Items 11 and 12 on 

your Order Paper. 
Now there might very well be overlap in these two Resolu

tions, but we will start with Item 11. 
It has been moved by Mr. Fleming, that the Agreement 

between Canada and the United States of America on princi
ple applicable to a northern natural gas pipeline and also the 
release dated of September 9, 1977, l>y the Honourable Allan J. 
MacEachen on Canada, U.S.A. agreement on Northern 
pipeline. 

I presume it is to be moved into Committee. 
Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, this motion to bring the 

two papers that are under consideration into Committttee to 
be discussed, is, in my opinion, something that we should 
really, maybe have done previously, or a little sooner, I should 
say, but, however, we have them here. 

My concern will start at the beginning, more or less , of what 
the agreement with Canada and the United States and the first 
thing I am interested in is the $200 million fund, or loan, which 
is actually a loan now. 

I have some concern as to the way this has been handled, 
right from the start, when the Government came out with 
reports and so forth, that this $200 million was, in fact, maybe 
a Heritage Fund. There is a lot of people believe this yet, 
although it is absolutely not true and we all know that. 

However, there is a lot of people do not know that. 
Mr. Chairman: Excuse me, just a minute, Mr. Fleming. 
In view of the fact that the principal representing this Gov-

ernment was the Commissioner, would like the Commissioner 
to be present during this consideration? 

Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Chairman: Carry on, Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman. My concern with t.his is 

that any time that we, as a people, have to borrow momes to 
prepare us for the damage that is going to be done to our 

0 
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Territory by somebody else and we are actually borrowing the 
money from those same persons, and then repay that money, 
at a very high interest rate, I am expecting, I think is just a 
little too much for me. 

I am sure that it is going to cause a problem. As I go further 
on , you will see that the payment that we must make back on 
that will possibly not be coming from our tax revenues that we 
get from the line. I will clarify that later on, but I am sure I am 
right. 

If we do go to the extent of borrowing all of the money, which 
I would hope if we do at all we don't have to, I hope we wouldn't 
have to borrow any, but if we do, then we may get into this 
situation. The pipeline is going to be a boom and bust situation, 
we know that. It isn't what is going to happen while it is here 
that we should consider so much, as to what is going to happen 
to us after it is over. 

Mr. Chairman, I would like to give you an example at this 
time as to what could happen to us , and I will hit merely one 
phase that we have in operation in the Yukon Territory that 
could really be affected by the pipeline operation, and that is 
the Bill for instance, that is before us today, compensation in 
this Territory. Whereas big construction companies will come 
in , there will be considerable amounts of money into the fund, 
compensation fund, for two to three years but after that boom 
and bust situation is over and everybody has gone, there is still 
only a few of us left, we are not going to, I don't think, populate 
too very fast, and we will be left with the consequences. In this 
case, I can see it being very, very disturbing when we find that 
we have ongoing pensions, claims and so forth on for years and 
years and years, and it can happen, because it is a dangerous 
occupation and there will be lots of problems. 

That's just one example . My contention with the two papers 
is another matter. The agreement in principle, which you 
have I think before you, all of you, reads as if we may get $5 
million one year, $10 million, and $20 million in the three year 
period of up to $35 million. 

Each one of them, in the agreement, each statement in the 
agreement says up to, it does not say we will get that. 

If you will read the Minister's statement of September 9th, 
in Ottawa, there is no problem there if you take it as it reads , it 
says you will get, $5, $10 and $20, is $35. 

Also, the $30 million that we are supposedly to get for tax 
revenue, is the same thing. It says up to that, due to certain 
ways of taxing and taxation and this, that and the other thing, 
which I really don't understand, anyway. However, it does say 
up to. 

I take it for granted, then, that we may not get the $30 
million. That is where I am concerned with paying back any
thing like a $200 million loan. 

The same thing goes for the statement by the Minister, 
again. He is stating, in that speech, that we will receive $30 
million a year, so there is a very large discrepancy there. 

I just would like to know and get some clarification as to just 
exactly what we are getting, because we could get into and 
involved in a large loan and we would not even possibly get 
enough back off of that pipeline to pay it back . 

I am very concerned, because I think, in the Throne Speech, 
it was referred to there as, more or less, definite figures that 
we would get too and I think the figures were somewhere 
around in the neighbourhood of, if we borrowed $2 million, we 
would end up paying back a certain percentage in, you know, 
26, 24, somewhere. 

But, the implication was there that we would have $5 or $6 
million left over every year and I think this is very misleading, 
when you read the actual agreement, because it does not say 
that we would end up with $30 million to pay back that loan. 
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This is was my great concern in these two, the agreement 
and the statement by the Minister and I would like some 
clarification, if I can, from the Government or anybody who 
can give it to me, Mr. Commissioner, maybe. I hopethatsome 
other Members have other things, I think they have. 

That was my great concern, because I feel, Mr. Chairman. 
that we are going to embark on programs and everything to 
protect ourselves and I feel that maybe we are going to get into 
it deeper than we can ever get out of it. I would sooner see it 
left in the, leave the ball game right square on the federal level 
and let them look after it themselves and suffer our conse
quencies a little bit when we are asking for our taxes, we get 
them back and we use them for the best of our ability. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner? 
Mr. Commissioner : Mr. Chairman, I am sorry, I missed 

the very start of the Honourable Member 's question, but I am 
picking up at the end, I assume he was talking about the 
utilization of this $200 million line of credit and if we have to 
repay that with interest out of taxes that flow from the 
pipeline, there will be nothing left for us on which we can use 
for programs, et cetera. Is that correct? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, possibly, I am saying possi
bly, because of the fact, and with all respect, Mr. Commis
sioner, the actual question, if there was a question, would be, 
how come that the agreement in principle reads that all these 
figures that we are going to get for rental and so forth states up 
to, in the actual agreement, it says up to that much, it does not 
say we will get that much, then the Minister, in his statement, 
definitely said that we would. If you read them carefully you 
will see that he said we would get these figures. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, up to, I am positive, 
and I was at the discussions at which these figures were de
veloped, means a maximum. We can't go above that, but we 
absolutely can and will develop a taxation method which will 
get us that much money each year. It means we must do some 
work, and Treasury in fact are developing scenarios and 
ideas. It is a new field for them, but there has to be some 
special method, and there will undoubtedly have to be legisla
tion come through which will guarantee that we get the tax 
figures listed in this document. 

But I can assure you that where there is a will, there is a way 
and Treasury will develop that scenario for us so that we do 
get a maximum amount allowable under this agreement. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 
Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, then that would be fine if this 

was the case and we are going prepare ourselves, and I hope 
that this is understood. However, I would carry on to the $30 
million that is supposedly, and this is something that I feel 
very strongly about , we don't seem to, the government, 
maybe ourselves, I don't know who is to blame, but we don't 
seem to get to the people, the crunch of it right off the bat. We 
say you have got $30 million, first it was to do the Alaska 
Highway or something, we finally got the answer to that one, 
that it is, I think the Minister of Local Government gave me 
the answer one morning, it was for the Yukon Territory and 
that is fine. 

Now, in the agreement if you will go, I think it is, to the 
second last page, you will find that there is really more to what 
this $30 million is for than just the road. You will see on that 
page there are all sorts of things such as borrow pits that may 
be filled in, there is sewage and water, which I don't know, 
these are some of the things that I would really like the ans
wers to. Are we going to take the $30 million worth and pay for 
sewage and water and things like that and borrow pits, c~mp 
clean-ups, there are numerous things in there which you will 
see. 

I am just wondering how inis $30 million works, too. Just 



whe;e are we going to spend it a ll ? You know . it certainly 
wont be on the road If It IS for these other things. It says. in the 
agreement, that it is for those th ings. 

I take them to be clean-ups, after they leave and possibly 
some of them. even. maybe some of the work that is to be done 
to take care of their situation while they are here, which I think 
I would be very strongly opposing, if that is the case. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I am not sure. Can you 
tell me which. show me exactly where this is? Annex Four? 

I am sorry , I do not have Annex Four in my copy. I have got 
Three and Five . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 

Mr. Fleming: Yes. Mr. Chairman. it is the second last 
page. It is not in the actual agreement, Mr. Chairman. 1 am 
sorry. I probably made a mistake there. 

It is not in the actual agreement. The agreement is signed 
before that. It IS JUSt m the way that things will be done and I do 
n.ow know whether that is. but this is what the money is for. 
Costs relatmg to roads IS what they more or Jess say. 

Then . direct charges by public authorities and it is crossing 
damages. roads, railroad crossings, et cetera, I can under
stand that. Road damages caused by- , I can see that, I can 
understand that. Required bridge reinforcement I under
stand that. Air field and airstrip repairs. I am not so sure I 
understand that if it is for the road. 
Dr~inage maintenance, I can even understand that, possi

bly. lor the road. If there was a problem or we needed it done 
before the problem came about. 

Borrow pit reclaimation , now that is one I am just a little bit 
<" tHH:erned about, because that is something that they are 
g11Ing to mess It up and I say. let them pay for it. 

h1wer line damage, yes, but they should also, you know, I 
don t thmk we should pay for something like that. 

Legal liability for fire damage, which I was really con
cerned about. because if they are going to set fire to part of the 
yukon. and it could be quite a performance before we are 
I lll!Shmg and a pile of money, $30 million wouldn 't go too far. 

<>nee that is ove:, if you will read the agreement, that is the 
t·nd of our $30 Imlhon. It says that , that it will be up to that and 
when that Is spent, you won't get any more. 

Utilities system repair, water, sewage, etcetera, which is a 
good word , you know. I am almost thinking we are back in our 
legislation. 

Camp waste _disposal , which means that possibly I guess we 
are gomg to bu 1ld dumps and so forth , for these people in these 
camps, and everything. 

I take it that this is where the money is going to be spent it 
will have to be , if the Federal Government says yes. I could he 
wrong. I hope I am. 

. Camp site reclaimation and other items specified in en
VIronmental stipulations, and cost of surveillance and related 
studies. if required by the registered bodies. 

Now this, I take it, is in the $30 million dollars? 
Mr. Commissioner: No. 

Mr. Fleming: That is what is says in the agreement if you 
read it carefully. ' 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, at the bottom of that 
there is a little asterisk, and the asterisks are opposite num
bers 1, 2, and3. It states that incase of these items and all other 
road-related charges by public authorities, the total charges 
m the Yukon Territory shall not exceed $30 million. So the $30 
million only applies to numbers 1, 2, and 3. 

What this says is that numbers 4 to 14 will not be considered 
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socio-economic costs that will be borne by the Government. 
but will be direct charges to the Applicant and the pipeline 
company itself, will have to include the costs for all of those 
items, numbers 4 to 14 in their direct charge against the 
pipeline. 

I understand , not being totally expert in this, that this means 
that that will be built into the rate base so that in effect they 
w11l be pa1d for by the consumers of gas in the United States 
eventually. In other words, these are costs that Canada will 
experience for no other reason than the fact that there is a 
pipeline being built to take Alaskan gas to U.S. consumers, 
and Canada has said, United States, that means you and you 
alone must pay for that in terms of the cost of that pipeline, not 
the taxpayers of Canada, nor the taxpayers of Yukon. 

I might add a lso, that the single regulatory agency I believe 
is considered in the same vein. The absolute cost to the gov
ernment of the bodies and the people that will be involved in 
the single regulatory agencywvill not be paid for by the Gov
ernment of Canada or the Go¢'ernment of Yukon , but they will 
be charged to the pipeline applicant, and become a cost of 
service. 

That is my understanding of it, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard? 
Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, my questioning is also a long 

the lmes of the Yukon property tax formula. My first question 
is , who will be imposing that property tax? Will it be the 
Territorial Government, since that is the one kind of tax tha t 
the Yukon Government can levy, or will it be a federal tax, 
which is administered and levied by the Federal Govern
ment? 

Mr. Commissioner: Certainly the Yukon Territorial Gov
ernment will levy the tax. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard? 
Ms Millard: Further on to that, something I would like to 

emphasize, because I think a Jot of people have overlooked it 
myself included, when I first read this agreement. It says i~ 
both MacEachen's statement and in the agreement that the 
Yukon property tax formula will apply from January 1st after 
the year in which leave to open the pipeline is granted by the 
appropriate regulatory authority, until the date that is earlier 
of the following , hereinafter called the tax termination date: 
(a) December 31st, 2008, or (b) December 31st of the year in 
which leave to open the Dempster line is granted by the ap
propriate regulatory authority. 

I would like to know why the taxation on the Alcan route will 
stop once there is an agreement to open a Dempster route. 

Mr. Commissioner: The taxes won't stop. I am sorry, Mr. 
Chairman, I did not address you properly. 
. The tax~s will not stop from the Alaska Highway route, but, 
m d1scusswns leading up to this agreement, it was obvious 
that the Dempster line, which is a line, of course that would be 
strictly for Canadian benefit , for the benefit of ~II Canadians 
that ,_ if the tax levy of the amount or the magnitude that i~ 
app~1ed to the Ale an line, if a tax levy of that size, were applied 
agamst the Dempster, the Dempster wouldn't be economical. 

So, what they said was that we can tax the Alaska Highway 
route, at this level , until the Dempster is built, or December 
31st, 2008, whichever is earlier, and, at that time we will have 
to sit down and re-negotiate the rate of taxatio~. 

Now, I know that that leaves all sorts of suppositions open, 
but I can only try to reassure everybody here that although 
the taxation rate may be less, the tax base of course' would be 
much greater so that the total dollars co~ing from' Yukon, ·I 
have no doubt at all, would be greater. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard. 

0 
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Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, if the Territorial Government 
is going to be imposing the property tax, can we anticipate 
that this Assembly will be passing the legislation for that, or 
will new legislation be needed, or will it be after the next 
election? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I cannot tell you 
whether this particular Legislature will be passing the Ordi
nance to assess taxes. Let me think now, I would guess not , 
though, since the tax base does not start until the year 1980. I 
would hardly think that we would rush in and bring forward a 
tax ordinance now that won' t begin until 1980, but , I am neither 
here nor there on that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: I would ask one more question on the capac

ity and availability of gas. 
The $2.5 million , I believe , this is a consideration that is in 

the agreement for all of the situations where gas would be 
taken into the Yukon, is it not. This is our maximum that we 
would get. 

Mr. Commi~sioner: Mr. Chairman, the $2.5 million goes 
towards makmg arrangements to provide gas to Beaver 
Cr~ek, Burwash , Destruction Bay, Haines Junction, 
Whitehorse, Teslin , Upper Liard, and Watson Lake. That 's 
r_ight. For those communities the arrangements of feeder 
hnes , et cetera cannot exceed $2.5 million. However, Clause 2 
states that there are additional funds available to help make 
arrangements to provide gas to communities farther away 
from the pipeline itself. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
. Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, one question , isn't it a 

nght of the Yukon Territory to raise it's own taxes and levy 
taxes? 

Mr. Commissioner: Absolutely, with regard to property 
taxes, no doubt. 

Mr. _Berger: Then , Mr. Chairman, with all due respect, 
w~y d1d the ~overnment of Canada, right in their agreement 
With the Umted States of America tell us here in the Yukon 
that the limit of taxation we can raise here, if the people turn 
back to the last page of the agreement, we find that there is an 
~greement in principle for three different provinces, but why 
IS there not an agreement in principle with the Yukon in there? 

Mr. Commissioner : Mr. Chairman, I am sure that if we 
want an agreement in principle that will allow us to tax this 
particular pipeline at about fifteen times our normal tax rate 
they will be willing to sign it, but really that is the point. Thi~ 
rate of tax is so enormous compared to what we would have 
been taxing under our normal tax rates, it is almost unbeliev
able. 

I believe that a consultant for the pipeline company itself at 
the Lysyk Inquiry stated that we might raise $4 million per 
year, when the pipeline was in total production using our 
current taxation rates. ' 

. The Government of Canada negotiated for us a rate of max
Imum of a $30 million, and escalating every year with the 
GNP. I am afraid that the constitutional issue may be one that 
may be of concern to the Honourable Member, but certainly if 
we wanted a formal agreement, I am sure that Ottawa will 
enter into some agreement with us. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berg~r:. Well, Mr. Chairman, with all due respect to 

~r. ~o.mmJs_swn~r, maybe this Legislative Assembly may 
fmd 1t m the1r w1sdom to raise $40 million in taxation if we 
thought it would be necessary. I can see no reason why this 
government would not have been able to raise $30 million also 
if they found it necessary. ' 
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Mr. Commissioner: Well , Mr. Chairman , there is a 
reason, and it is called a discretionary tax agreement between 
Canada and the United States, and that was entered into bet
ween Canada and the United States and is binding on all of the 
provinces and all of the territories which prevents any pro
vince from goudging a pipeline crossing its territory that sup
plies gas or oil in an international basis and the agreements 
with the provinces of Alberta and British Columbia and Sas
katchewan take into account that discretionery tax rate. You 
cannot tax a pipeline on that basis. You cannot do it so-. This 
is an international agreement and of course this is an interna
tional pipeline and even in Alberta, Saskatchewan and British 
Columbia , the National Energy Board has the power and the 
authority to regulate the pipeline in those jurisdictions. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman , I realize that, as I stated, as it 

states there , three statements by the Governments of the Pro
vinces of Alberta, Saskatchewan and British Columbia. There 
is nothing in there about the Yukon, but then you go to Section 
5, Taxation Provincial Undertaking it is under (b) with re
spect to the Yukon property tax imposed. 

It is, here is the Federal Government found it in their wis
dom to negotiate in the name of the Yukon Territory, and this 
is what I am criticizing. 

Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask several 
little questions, all unrelated. 

One is the gas that is to be supplied to Yukon communities, I 
think that I read in the agreement somewhere that there is a 
limit to how long it is going to, the cost applied in the Yukon 
will be the same as at the border, at Alberta , but, it seems to 
me, there was a limit on the time that that would be available 
a t Alberta prices? Is that correct. 

Mr. Commissoner: Mr. Chairman, I must confess that I 
am not current right up on that and, the time limit, but I will 
certainly check it out. If there is anything in the agreement 
that limits that time. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard. 
Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, another small question, which 

has far-reaching i;nportance, just like the last one, and ques
tions which should be answered far more clearly before we 
can even consider pipeline as being a good thing in the Yukon, 
as far as I can see. 

There is a list in the back of the agreement, listing the zones 
for the pipeline, and one of them is zone ten. It says, " Foothills 
Pipelines North (Yukon) Limited", which means the route 
from the MacKenzie Delta, down the Dempster. 

Has there been an agreement made with Foothills, has 
Foothills actually made an application to build a pipeline 
down the Dempster and that agreement has been made al
ready? Is that why they are calling it Foothills Pipelines North 
(Yukon)? 

\ 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, no, I am sure there is 
no agreement to build a pipeline. In fact , I think the require
ment is that Foothills must study and present an application to 
the National Energy Board, by July 1, 1979. I am not sure of 
that , but I think that was the date that I recall. 

The only reason they have a Foothills North (Yukon), is for 
corporate structures only. As you know, perhaps you have 
heard about , as a result of the National Energy Board Report, 
the Foothills Company itself, which was originally called just 
Foothills (Yukon) , had to go out and totally restructure its 
corporate bodies. 

There are now, I think, five or six Foothills companies,and 
so each segment is broken up into a Foothills (South Yukon), 
Foothills (British Columbia North) , Foothills (Alberta), 



t<~oothills (Saskatchewan J, Foothills (BC South J. and they 
have a corporate structure obviously called Foothills (North 
Yukon 1 that would undertake the studies leading up to an 
application. and if a pipeline were granted, an application 
were granted, and built , it would be owned by Foothills (North 
Yukon). 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard? 
Ms Millard : On the regulatory authority. it says the re

spective regulatory authorities of the two governments, 
meaning . I presume, American and Canadian, will consult 
from time to time on relevant matters arising under this ag
reement, particularly on the matters referred to in parag
raphs 4, 5, and 6 re leading to tariffs for the transportation of 
gas through the pipeline. How much does that consultation 
mean when it is relating to tariffs? How much agreement is 
going to be made on the regulatory authority level about 
tariffs? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I think we are getting 
into a technicality about pipelines and costing of tariffs, that is 
well above my comprehension, but, I understand that on any 
international project , there are two things to consider, or 
three: ( 1 J is the return to the producer, the other is the cost to 
the consumer and the third, and the one the pipeline applicant 
is most interested in , is the guaranteed rate of return on his 
investment. How they sort these things out , I am sorry, I 
couldn't explain it to the Honourable Member, and in fact I 
couldn't even find it out. We would have to bring somebody up 
who knows all about that aspect to explain it. 

Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, if I could just point out, it says 
relating to tariffs for the transportation of gas through the 
pipeline. 

Mr. Commissioner: Yes. 
Ms Millard: Doesn't that mean taxation? 
Mr. Commissioner : No, Mr. Chairman, that means the 

charge that the pipeline company can make to both the con
sumer or the producer , I guess it is. The producer develops a 
gas project. He doesn't own the pipeline, but he continues to 
own the gas in the pipeline. The pipeline company places a 
tariff . which means he says to the producer it is going to cost 
you so many dollars per thousand cubic feet to pass your gas 
through my pipeline. If there isn't some way of controlling 
this , the guy at the other end when that gas comes out may be 
paying totally unreasonable prices for that gas, and therein is 
where this negotiation has to go on. That's my understanding 
of it anyway. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Commissioner, it 

states in the agreement that the agreement becomes effective 
upon signature and shall remain in force for a period of thirty
five years. It also states that the two governments recognize 
that legislation will be required to implement the provisions of 
the agreement. I understand the United States has already 
passed legislation ratifying the agreement. Does the Commis
sioner have any idea of when Canada plans on introducing 
legislation that will bring into effect the terms of the agree
ment that was signed? 

Mr.Commissioner: · Mr. Chairman, I was told that the 
legislation will be introduced before the House in Ottawa re
cesses for Christmas. That should be within the next two and a 
half weeks, I understand. · 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, another question regarding 

the press release that came from the Honourable Allan 
MacEachen, I don't know whether we should be as concerned 
with that as we are with the agreement, but it does state, if the 
Government approves the application, construction could 
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begin in the winter of 1982. This is of the Dempster Lateral. 

This ties into the question that I have. and, again, this is 
from the agreement, but is specifically from the press release. 
on page three. "An advance payment of up to $200 million, by ("""'\ 
Foothills, to provide compensation for social and economic "'"" J 
costs over the period 1978 to 1982". 

It does limit the period, where the line of credit is available. 
I understand that , because, in 1983, I believe, we will be on a 
full scale property taxation , as re.commended. 

However , there is some concern that if they do begin the 
Dempster lateral , in the winter of 1982, we will completely be 
on our own on the impact of the pipeline and we will be com
pletely as we were in the past, but we will have already then 
committed some of our property tax revenue and we will 
continue to have to use that property tax revenue to accom
modate the impact of both pipelines. 

It seems rather a heavy load , when wedon'thave any idea of 
what the impact could be, of both , one following after the 
other. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I think that is a very 
good point. I don't think it has been addressed properly by 
anybody, but, certainly, it is one that I will raise. 

I don't think that there is anybody that could conceive both 
of these pipeline projects, ofthat magnitude , being built at the 
same time, so I would expect it to be one and then the other at 
some reasonable time after that. But, I agree with the Hon
ourable Member, it probably hasn't been addressed properly 
and it should be. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon. 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman , I particularly wel

come the debate, in Commmittee, on the agreement concern
ing the pipeline, because I realize the validity of the questions 
that all Honourable Members have raised. :J 

I also know that there are one heck of a lot more questions 
than there are, presently, answers at this time. 

I also think that it is important that this debate and those 
questions be raised on the eve of what, I hope, will be the 
addition of a fourth elected member to the Executive Commit
tee, one of whose prime responsibilities will be the reporting, 
to this Assembly and to the public of the Yukon, and the re
sponsibility for this Government 's involvement in all pipeline 
matters. 

I think Mr. Chairman, we all realize the work that has gone 
into the government's position to this point in time. In fact I 
think that everybody recognizes the work that all Honourable 
Members have contributed to the pipeline question at this 
point in time. I just look at the complete and total difference of 
the attitude of the elected members of this Assembly, and the 
Government of Yukon towards the public inquiry that went on 
regarding the pipeline than our sister territory across the 
mountains. They did not contribute, they did not get involved, 
and in fact they were told by the inquiry process not to get 
involved in it. 

From the very beginning, the members of this Assembly, 
individually, and the government collectively, realized the 
paramount importance of this issue to all of the people of the •• 
Yukon and said and did get involved to a very great degree, 
and I think committed themselves very well on behalf of the 
people of the Yukon. In fact I think the Lysyk Report reflected 
many of the individual members' and the government's in
volvement on this important issue. I think when the Commis-
sioner was invited to Ottawa following the Lysyk Report, and 
was available to be consulted on the pipeline agreement, that 
we perhaps had a pretty heady atmosphere that everything 
was going in a fairly consistent manner and the Yukon was \ J 
going to be involved, and we were going to be considered in 
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every aspect of the pipeline agreement, and the pipeline deci
sions that were and are being made at this present time. 

I must say I had a bit of a different reaction when the 
Commissioner asked me to represent this government at the 
signing of the formal agreement between Canada and the 
United States, and you have felt like Yukoners as being in the 
back of the bus before. I have been put in that position , and I 
was once again, and felt a little queasy on behalf of the people 
of the Yukon. 

To make a long story short, I think there were thirty tables, 
and I was on table number 29, with the flunkies from the 
American government. You couldn't see Schlezinger and 
MacEachen and the Prime Minister from where I was sitting. 
I had to watch it on TV to see what had happened, really, after 
the event and there was one satisfatcion, that the Prime 
Minister'~ right hand man, Michael Pitfield, had evidently 
been placerl beside me at the table , and one of those pe~ple 
dressed to the nines in the morning suit, or who was a ma1tre 
de at the dinner, came up to the table and looked, just as we 
were sitting down, and said, oh, Mr. Pitfield, you are not 
supposed to be sitting with this bunch , and of course, took him 
away to the centre of the table. 

Be that as it may, they were very nice people. I had a very 
nice lunch with them , but I did get to feeling just a little bit 
uneasy about where the Yukon was going to fit into all of this at 
the press conference, and what was going on later. I think we 
had been dealt with, and Lysyk dealt with the government and 
with the individual members, and the government had dealt in 
a very responsible manner up to that point, and we were 
getting through and we were being involved. 

Following, of course, that agreement, once again, the feel
ing was reinforced that we were going to be able to have a say 
in what was happening, in meeting with Mr. Faulkner, who 
was very direct when we brought him the first question, you 
know, all right it is nice to set out an impact fund that we can 
call upon if there are socio-economic things which can't be 
met through our normal funding, we have to call upon it, will 
you guarantee that only the charges that the YTG makes upon 
those funds are the ones that will have to be paid back. 
And it was an affirmative answer, in that regard. It was also 
an affirmative answer that we would be consulted and in
volved. 

Well , Mr. Chairman, there are too many things that we 
have, as a Government, as an Executive Committee, been in 
consultation with the Federal Government on matters of 
single, regulatory agencies, impact centres, housing and land 
strategies, heritage funds, controlling of in-migration, t~xa
tion benefits from the taxing authority, that there are JUSt, 
from our attempt at leading the discussions and attempt_ing to 
get some answers, more questions are coming back· from 
answers and of course, the frustration of the members of this 
Assembly an'd the public, are obvious all around. There is no 
doubt of that. 

I think that it is extremely important that we have the 
capabilities of pulling together and have one person involved 
in all aspects of the pipeline, who is responsible to the mem
bers of this Assembly and responsible to the members of the 
public, to be able to answer these questio:1s: where are we at 
the present time, what are we trying to do, what are the 
answers, if there aren't any answers, why aren't the answers 
forthcoming? 

I think that it is absolutely essential that that happen at this 
time, for this Government and for the representatives of the 
people to have creditability in this pipeline issue, that a person 
duly elected by his colleagues to answer these questions in the 
political arena, is an absolute must, at this time. 

.- Mr. Chairman, as I say, that is why I welcome t~ese_ques
tions coming up, at this point in time, because I thmk 1t em-
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phasizes the importance of this aspect of a fourth elected 
member on the Executive Committee , and I can only say that 
he is certainly, he or she is certainly going to have their work 
cut out for them. 

Mr. Chairman, I know that there is a time in the Yukon for 
leadership and responsibility, on this paramount pipeline 
issue and I know that that is felt and shared by all Members of 
the Assembly. I feel that the appointment of the fourth elected 
member , with one of his prime responsibilities for getting the 
answers, or at least saying why he can' t get the answers to 
these absolutely important questions, will be the thrust that 
we have all been looking for, in all of our ability to meet these 
challanges , on behalf of the Assembly, and on behalf of the 
people of the Yukon. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: I have another question for the Commis

sioner and this is in the property taxes that are being sug
gested by the agreement, or were agreed to within the agree
ment, they are not suggested, they are final ized, does the sum, 
the maximum of $30 million, this will include the property 
taxes that would be levied by municipalities, should the 
pipeline traverse the area within a municipality. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, my understanding is 
that it would. There will have to be , of course, appropriate 
arrangements worked out between the Territorial and the 
Municipal Government on that basis. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, then, I wonder if Mr. Com

missioner could , in layman's language , interpret Section 4, for 
me, subsection 4 of Section 5, Taxation and Provincial Under
takings, where we go into the situation, in 1987. There is refer
ence there to grants to municipalities and local improvement 
districts , in order to calculate the aggregate per capita re
venue derived from such sources, for 1983. 

If municipalities do not give up the right to tax the pipeline, 
then why would we be using the grants to municipalities and 
L.I.D. 's as part of our calculations for the aggregate, or for the 
average? 

Mr. Commissioner: Well, Mr. Chairman, this clause 4, is 
another attempt to ensure the Yukon that the pipeline will 
carry its load, its own way. 

There was considerable concern, of course, that in the 
negotiations, that indeed all of a sudden the Yu~on _would 
double or triple our taxes, that once we got the p1pelme we 
would double or triple the taxes and that would make the 
whole thing uneconomic, an from an international standpoint 
that was deemed not to be fair. 

At the same time, there was a concern raised th~t said but 
look, what happens if inflation hits, and you are saymg that we 
can escalate our taxes $30 million, adjusted annually from 
1983 by the Canadian GNP price deflator, as determined by 
Statistics Canada. Well we all know that maybe that 6 per cent 
nationally could- maybe in the . Yukon, as a result of the 
pipeline, or something else, the inflation rate is 9lh per cen~. 
We wondered how that could be reflected adequately. What 1s 
a good measure of the inflation rate in the Yukon, if we are 
talking about property taxes, it shouldn't be a measure of the 
cost of tomatoes, or that sort of thing, it should be somehow 
related to the taxation rate. · 

Now in the Yukon, as you know, municipalities and so on, the 
inflation, the cost of providing governm~nt and services isn't 
only related to the tax rate, your taxatiOn rate. 

The municipality can tax a resident or a business, but there 
is also that grant to municipalities ~hich could be ~d~ust~d. S_o · 
if you just took the tax rate, levied by a mumc1pahty, 1t 



wouldn't quite be accurate. You could maintain your tax base 
~t the same lev~! , if the grants to municipalities were grossly 
mcreased, and It would appear as if there was no escalation in 
property taxes, where in reality , it is being offset by an in
creased grant. 

So t~at is really what that segment in there is for , and I can't 
explam ~e.t ho:V it works .. I have treasury people working with 
the mumcipality and vanous people in the areas trying to get a 
handle on it , but it is a complicaterl thing. It is really an effort 
to be fair. 

If you and I, and other Yukon people, find that our taxes go 
up at 14 pe~ c~nt , but the GNP price deflator only goes up at 6 
per .cent, th1s IS to gu~rantee that the pipeline's taxes will go up 
14 hke yours and wme, not at 6, like the GNP deflator. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, and also on 9 and there is the 
suggestion in 9, of that same section , there is ' a suggestion , it 
says, ..... however , should public authorities in the State of 
Alaska require creation o.f a special fund or funds financed by 
contnbutwns not fully reimbursable , in connection with con
struction of the pipeline in Alaska, the Government of Canada 
or the Yukon Territory, will have the right to take similar 
action". 

The first part of the section states that " indirect socio
economic costs in the Yukon will not be reflected in the cost of 
the service to the United States , other than through the Yukon 
property tax '' . 

But. then they are saying that if the State of Alaska can 
l'~tabl ish a necessity for a special fund, then the Government 
ot Canada C<m also. 

In what arP.as would they be looking at establishing these 
special funds'? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I do not know, but it 
was tossed in there, this particular clause, to protect the 
Yukon agam. 

The agrument was used that this is a dangerous precedent to 
start,. this idea tha~ the National Energy Board of the Lysyk 
InqUiry came up with, that there should be just a lump sum of 
$200 m.Ill.wn dollars given to a jurisdiction, as a grant. That 
$200 m1lhon then would be a cost of service to the pipeline and 
reflected in what the people at the other end would have to pay 
for their gas. 

. So, that idea was not acceptable , but, number 9 was thrown 
m that says, okay, the Yukon cannot do it. We agree. B.C. 
won't do it , Alberta won't do it , Saskatchewan won't do it but 
if Alaska does it, if they all of a sudden come to that pipeiine, 
and they say, now, look , fine, we will let the pipeline go 
th~ough, but it is going to cost us a lot of money and we are 
gomg to thump you with a $50 million grant to the State for the 
right to build that pipeline. ' 

If they do that, then we can do that. That is all that says. 
. Simili.arly, Mr. Chairman, if I might digress, there is one 
mterestmg one, number 8, and I would draw member's atten
tion to number 8, which really ties our taxation rate to the 
Alaskan taxation rate. 

If the Alaskan taxation rate of a pipeline should escalate 
over the next few years, we can likewise escalate our taxation 
rate .. Again , it was thrown in there just to make it fair that 
what. Is good ~or Alaska, should surely be good for their neigh
bourmg Terntory and neighbouring jurisdiction , Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, in the agreement, there was 
no, and I suppose this will be in the legislation that is tabled 
before the House by the Government, there was no indication 
of who would be responsible for the funding or for paying for 
the services of the regulatory agency. 
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That has not been resolved at this time, has it , Mr. Commis
sioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr . Chairman. the Honourable 
Member is right. It is not included in this agreement that I can 
find . and I was surprised, I must say, to find that it wasn't 
there. because the agreement, or this particular issue, was 
discussed, and it was agreed that it would be a charge against 
the pipeline applicant. 

What I wanted to make sure in my discussions in Ottawa 
was that it would not be charged against the $200 million that 
we would have to repay. Of course, we obviously have that 
assurance now from the Federal Government, although we 
still do not have that in writing, as we discussed earlier. 

I still assume we are going on the basis that it will occur as a 
charge against the pipeline company. The precedent for that 
will be the Alaskan situation, where the regulatory agency 
there was recognized as a direct charge against the Alyeska 
Pipeline. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs . Watson: Mr. Chairman, just one further- it's notre

a lly a question, just an observation and I am glad that the 
Commissioner referred to the Alaskan situation where reg
ulatory agencies were a direct charge against the pipeline 
company, and I read the article or the report that was pre
pared by the Alaska Pipeline Co-ordinator, and in his report he 
suggested the one man strong regulatory agency, and gave 
some very interesting- one final person who could say yes or 
no. That appealed to me, and he gave some very good argu
ments. 

He a lso suggested in that article that the regulatory agency 
be funded by government , and that it be voted in government , 
and he felt that it was controlled, and that the company and the 
people of the jurisdiction who would be using the gas from the 
pipeline would certainly benefit, if the government had to 
stand up in the House and vote money for that regulatory 
agency. It is a very interesting concept, and I would hope that 
maybe we would pursue it a little further , or someone who has 
the right to make decisions would pursue it a little further . 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman . 
Mr. Chairman: Do we have any further comments on Item 

number 11? 

Mr. Fleming? 
Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, just as mover of the motion I 

am very happy that we did have the discussion, because I 
think that this is really the thing that Mr. McKinnon was 
speaking on, the Minister of Local Government, too that now 
when you get the answers all here, rather than trying to ask 
questions in a question period when you will get one back. I 
think that a little discussion like that brings out and clears the 
air for the whole picture, and there was quite a-not a discre
pancy in those two papers, but the fact that one said one thing 
and one the other, wasn't very clear to many people, and as I 
say, I am very happy at this time to get the answers we have 
gotten. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner? 
Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I don't believe it was 

mentioned in the items in regard to the regulatory agency that 
we included in the Speech from the Throne but we strongly 
recommended to the Government of Canada, a system very 
similar to the one mentioned by the Honourable Member from 
Kluane, one that would guarantee that there would be that 
there would be accountability. 

We feel this is extremely important that this thing does not 
have an unlimited budget and increased to the size that we all 
know government departments and agencies can do it left 
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uncontrolled so we are concerned about that. 
Mr. Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Commissioner . 

f Mr. McCall ? 

lJ 

Mr. McCall: Yes. Mr. Chairman . I would move that Mr. 
Speaker do now resume that Chair. 

Mr. Fleming: I second that. 
Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McCall. sec· 

onded by mr. Fleming that Mr. Speaker do now resume the 
Chair . 
Motion agreed to 

Mr . Speaker resumes the Chair 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order . 
May we have a report from the Chairman of Committees? 
Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, the Committee of the Whole 

have cons idered Bill Number 9 and Bill Number 4 and directed 
me to r eport progress on same. 

The Committee has also considered a motion concerning a 
Canada/U.S.A. Agreement on a northern pipeline and di
rected me to report progress on same and beg leave to s it 
again. 

Mr. Speaker: You have heard the report of the Chairman 
of Committees. are you agreed? 

Some Members : Agreed . 
Mr. Speaker: Leave is so granted. May I have your further 

pleasure? 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse Riverdale? 
Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker , I move that wedonowcall it5 

o'clock. 
Ms Millard: I second that motion. 
Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 

Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the Hon· 
ourable Member from Ogilvie that we do now call it 5 o'clock. 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Speaker: This House now stands adjourned until 10 
a.m. Monday next. 
Adjourned 

The following Legislative Returns were Tabled 
(November 24, 1977) 

77-2-21 

Federal Government Request for Housing 
(Written Question No. 18) 

77-2-22 

N.C.P.C. 34.5 Kv Line 
(Written Question No. 17) 

77-2-23 

Science Council of Canada Report 
(Oral Question- Page 216 - November 21, 1977) 

U:C!SIATIVE RJ;ruR' ' 

1977 {Se<ond) Sess1on 
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~tr . Spc.&.kcr , 
Mer:btrs of the Asscs:Dlv 

tAl Novcnber 21 , 1917, the t-boourable ~k!ll'.be r £ron lt!lu tehorse Riverd.llc 
a.sked the fol l a..mg quest1on: 

'The federal &ovemment ha.s l.lldioted that 1t r.nr Tf!Gwrc SO nUt:· 
i<lr.U l y uruts and SO single fanulr I,.D'uts of sovenurent housUlg 
~1 t.hln the next year or t\.0. 

a) hhat e££Kt will tlus h:lve on t.he present use of JPJ'TO>-.tr,ltcl\ 
!S gcven'V!I:!nt uuts by YTG? 

b) Does this request or U'IU.lc.ttion by tl\c federal KO\'emrtnt I"'C3n 
;a ''bu.lld·~" of fe-deral depart1:'1:nt ~unpowcr 111 conn~uon \ott ~ 
p1pellne activity? If so , ~hat spcc1hc dcpart~nt~ ,lTC" to 
be affected?" 

The a.nS\ooer to th~ .1bove suesoon u as follO'tooo~ 

No de£u'Ut1\"e assessr:-cnt of tJ\~ rrqwrcr-cnt lor :~JJ.ltl<'r...l~ 
far.Uly or sin~le \Jl.i.ts has been r"ddc by the 1edera.l Oe~ar~nt ot l'UOl!.: 
I'IO rks , sir.ply because the v:tnous soveJ1li"".Cnt dcpar~nl:t Jo no t 1-"" .n
the ~.nformtion or' "'hic:h to base rehable toreca.sts o£ hc1J.5lflb r.Ct:•!!.. 
Nevertheless, DPW 1-.ave be:en g1V1.ng the r-.attcr urgent .llld ~ontwwl 
consi.deration, as have the departtl!nta.l ro.nat;ers rc.-prc-sent'!J on U.t: 
Fedenl lnterdepartr.lental Co·ordin3.tln~ Cc:TUttCl' ( riLL). ih.• r rcl1:"1.:: u· 
fi&Utes coql iled to date refer only to est tr.ate) of ~ n'\iUHC'n.·n~ 
mde by departrents and are telll requ.trenl.'!n ts pert311llJ\~ to p1pelwc ~,..r 
other spec:1al pro)etts. Hence, ;any forecast of an l..tT.'tdl:uc U'h.:rt'J.'>t:' w 
housing requirerrents does not represent norn.11 or per.:nn~nt gro\oot..'"\ ,\.; 
a general s tatement , I 3.t'l assured that the Oep3rtncnt of P\Jbllc r.orl..s 
do not CCf'l.teq>hte ente n.ng into the construcuon of adr.lt t1onal ~ovcrr .. "'l.'nt 
housina to aeet a terporary need but '-Ould look mste3d to tht' pn\-a~c 
N r ket insofar as possible. 

•> 

b) 

A tbusing Strategy is being prepared by the Yukon lbUSmK COrpor:u liJII 

for presentation to the Le.-:islauve Assecbly. The Terntona.l 
Govem2nt ' s occ~ancy of Pool ~USLI\g \oo'"lll c.ontlJlue to be h~t:·J ''" 
the overall requi rement . 

It has been ascertained that the YTC housll1i: rcqUlrer:wmts do not 
coae under Treasury Board·;:appro\-ed entlt lenent$, as the f'edcr.11 
dcpartft!nts and cn»m agencies do . At present. lt u not 3ntltlp;Ht.'d 
that YI'G vill be reques ted to relinquish any houslllg. 

The various federal dcpart:lhmts are atteqning a.s accurately 3.S 
po55ible to ascertain their future accormod.a;tion reqw rerrents 1.n 

response to pipel ine or pipeline related 3Ctivities, Ollld quite 
obviously, there will be soae level of lJlCrease in federa l t.,'O\'erT'-~nt 
activity in Yukon. lhttil details of the gowrnr"ent •s intent1ons 
with respect to the regulatory agency and related actiVlties ;arc 
made know• it is not possible to be specific a.s t o nun"bers . By 
way of e:uq>les, it is anticipated that s«e increase in personnel 
in the Oepa~nt of Colnada f_q)loynent ;mel lttUgr3uon in relat1on 
to a t:Wlpower delivery system ruy be necessary. S1m1larly, several 
departments wit.h responsibilities r elated to environmental IT'o.1ttcrs 
~::a.y be faced with the need for s~ expansion , and some expan.uon 
in term of law enforc~nt ha\-e been identifled by the RQJP. 

All depart:rcnts, as well as this a.dz:ti.nistration, are 3Cutely 3warc 
of the need to identify the incre.ues which are norn:al g-rowth 
f:tc.tors, and those which are teqx>rary in nature. 

!!Noe!.v!'ed>e=rc...:;ZZ,_ ___ .l977 .. ..,_, 
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LEGISLATIVE RETURN /f 

(1977 Second Session) 

Hr. Speaker, 
Member s o f The Assembly 

On November 21st , 11!177 , Mr. W. Lenqerkc asked the !ollow1.n9 
questions : 

Wha t is the sta tus of the .. w;ur.ehorse Fr1nqe Area" 
Franc hi se Ag r eement be tween 'i , T . G , and Yukon Electrical 
wi th respect to the energizing or use of the )4 . 5 K.V. 
line t ha t r uns bet ween the C4rcross Cut-off and the 
N . C . P .C . Marsh Lake Control Oam? 

( a) When will the a gre ement be finalued'? 

(b) When will the llnc be in usc'? 

(c) Will N . C . P . C. or 'iukon Electrical be author12:ed to 
distribut e power beyond the N.C.P.C. control to the 
Marsh La ke Sub-dl.vision'? 

Tho a n swe r s t o the questions above arc o.s follows : 

The Whitehor se "vicinn.y• franc:usc expired 1.n 1974 and w1 11 
be re-ncqot i a tcd s hortly . The ori<:Jl.nal franchise had a 
t welve mile r adius from a point on 4t.h Avenue, whereas thcl.r 
new agreement requests approval for a 24 mile radius serv1.ce 
are a. The ex ist1.ng aqreemcnt has no prov.1sions to rcqu.1rc 
third p arty u sc o f t r ansmission lines . 

No r thern Cana da Power Com:nission and t.he Yukon Electrical 
Company Limi ted have recently negotiated a private agreement 
t o permi t i nterconnection of the transmission lines and 
t ho necessary inter connection isolat1ng breakers are on 
o r d er. The e quipme nt is expec t ed to be del1.vered and 
ins t all ed f or a n early s pring sta rt up of the main . 

The Yuko n Electrical Company appl1.ed to extend t.he1.r scrv1.ccs 
i n 1975 for two areas l.n the vicinity of Whl.tChorse . 

( a ) Mayo Roo.d - - Lake Laberge o.rea 

(b) Mo.rsh Lake . 

Pe rmi s sion i n writing was given the Yukon Electrical 
company for t he Lake Laber ge area, subJect to the inclus1.on 
of the area g r anted in any renewal of the fr anchise 
a greeme nt for the Whitehor se "vicinit y". 

I n view of the announced intention at that time by the 
Northern Cana da Power Com:ussion to build a power gr1.d 
ma in t o ser vice the community of Teslin and any intervening 
user s following the Alaska Highway from Whitehorse, it was 
decided that the Marsh Lake area would be serviced by 
N. C . P .C . , a nd Yu kon El ectrical company and the Electrical Public 
Ut i lities Boa rd wer e so informed . 

I f i t i s no lonqer t h e intention of N. C.P.C . to build such 
a qrid in t he for ese eable future 1 then the Whitehorse 
"vic i n i ty" fra nch ise will fonn part of the proposed new 
f ranchise n ego t i a tions with the Yukon Electrical Company . 

;:f:v . ~.u%z 
Da t e 
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LEGISLATIVE RETUR.'I I 

(1977 Second Scs!:ion) 

Mr . Speaker, 
Members of Thu AsSe!llbly 

On November 21st, l977, :-ts. E. Millard a..skcd the following 
quest1.on: 

Has any action been token by the Rcsouccc 
PlaMing Branch concerning the Science 
Counc1.l o( CanadA Report t 26 -- Look1.nq 
Northward , which mentions thu encoura ge ment 
of non-renewable resources such as timber 
and fu rs? 

The answer to the question above is as follows : 

The . Resource Plann1ng Branch has not taken any -J1.rcct 
act1.on rcgard1.ng the encouragement of utilizing- renewab l e 
resources such a s t1.mber and furs .1n accor dance wlth 
Science Counc1l of Canada Report No. 26. 

The Ter ritor.1al Governmen t , with its concern for" balanced 
northern development, Cr"eated tho Resource Plann.1ng Branch 
to rev1.ow and bring forward r" ccommcndations on the 
utili:.ation and manageme nt of Yukon's r enewable resour ce!l 
to meet local needs . Immedia.te energies arc be.1nq directed 
towards formulating a pr"oqra.rn wh1.ch 'oti ll identl.fy renewable 
reso':'rce potentials . This would be followed by a public 
part1.c1.pa t .l.on program to plan out long term deve lopment 
strategy 1 and the noccssary action to better utilize 
renewable resour"ces such as t1mbcr and furs . 

Copies of the report ha ve been sont for, and upon their 
arrival will be a.v<alablc !or members and any other 
inter ested parties. 
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